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Ref: FOI-082025-0001846 

Date: 12th September 2025 

Address / Email: 

Dear  

Request Under Freedom of Information Act 2000 

Thank you for requesting information under the Freedom of Information Act 2000, please see response 
below. 

Please provide the following information, broken down by month, between January 2020 and July 
2025 inclusive. If this is not possible, please instead provide it broken down by calendar year, 2020 to 
2025 inclusive. 

1. The number of times a patient was admitted where exposure to air pollution (International 
Classification of Diseases, tenth revision (ICD-10) code Z581) * was recorded as a contributing 
factor to the admission.

(* I understand this is the code used by NHS trusts to log exposure to air pollution, but if your trust 
uses a different code or some other system, please still provide the relevant data) 

1a. If possible, please tell me what the primary diagnosis was for each of these admissions. 

(For clarity, I want to know total numbers admitted with each primary diagnosis — for example, if 45 
people were admitted with a primary diagnosis of asthma where exposure to air pollution was identified 
as a contributing factor.) 

Due to the small number of results for some specific ICD-10 primary diagnosis codes which could 
potentially make data patient identifiable, we have aggregated the data into the ICD-10 three-character 
category group, but this still produced relatively low numbers for most categories   
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Trust does not publish numbers lower than 5 as this could lead to the identification of the persons 
involved and cause distress to families or friends, so Exemption Section 40(2) of the Freedom of 
Information Act is applied. 
 
2. Please tell me how many of the patients in question 1 subsequently died in hospital. 

Due to the low numbers, we are unable to provide a breakdown of deaths between 01/01/2020 and 
31/07/2025 but 12 patients died within the time period, at the end of the ICD-10 coded admission 
counted in Q1. 
 
If you are dissatisfied with our response, you have the right to appeal in line with guidance from the 
Information Commissioner. In the first instance you may contact the Information Governance Manager 
of the Trust. 
 
Information Governance Manager 
Trust Headquarters 
Russell’s Hall Hospital 
Dudley 
West Midlands 
DY1 2HQ 
Email: dgft.dpo@nhs.net  
 
Should you disagree with the contents of our response to your appeal, you have the right to appeal to 
the Information Commissioners Office at. 
 
Information Commissioners Office 
Wycliffe House 
Water Lane 
Wilmslow 
Cheshire 
SK9 5AF 
Tel: 0303 123 1113 
www.ico.org.uk 

mailto:dgft.dpo@nhs.net
http://www.ico.org.uk/
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If you require further clarification, please do not hesitate to contact us. 
 
 
Yours sincerely  
 
 
Freedom of Information Team  
The Dudley Group NHS Foundation Trust 
 
 
 
 


